
  
  

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

May 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1. Vouchers numbered 101948 through 101976 in the amount of $87,350.33 
2. Vouchers numbered 101995 through 102056 in the amount of $176,133.70 

 
C.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room Occupancy – Presented by Community  
           Development Director Mark Ziegler 
      2.  Ordinance No. 1951-0320 Updating Non-Represented Salary Schedule – Presented by Administrative 
           Services Director Michelle Sutherland 
      3.  Public Works Rollers Purchase Order – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
 
D.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Public Works Mower Purchase Order – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
      2.  Updating City Policies (100-05 & 100-12) – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
E.    Administration Reports 

• City Manager Report 
 
F.  Announcement of Next Meeting – May 19, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
G.  Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special Note for Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 
The public can provide comments via email or telephone. 

Email:  jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov 
Telephone:  (360) 432-5105 

Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 



 

Updated 4/27/20 
 

 
2020 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 5/19 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• 2019 Budget Year End Review 
• LEAN Process 

Business Agenda     
• Aspect Consulting C Street Landfill Contract 

Change No. 6 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1948-0120 Parks, Recreation, 
Open Space and Trails (PROST) Plan 

• Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room 
Occupancy 

• Ordinance No. 1951-0320 Non-represented 
Salary Schedule 

Administration Report 
•  

Executive Session 
• Real estate sale, purchase, or lease if a 

likelihood that disclosure would increase price 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(b), (c) 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 5/8 

Tues. 6/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Resident Owned Communities (ROC) 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Action Agenda 

• Aspect Consulting C Street Landfill Contract 
Change No. 6 

• C Street Update 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 5/22 

Tues. 6/16 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/5 



 

Updated 4/27/20 
 

•  
Tues. 6/16  
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Warrant Amnesty Day (Judge Greer) 

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget Amendment 

for 2020 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/5 

Tues. 7/7  
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 6/26 

Tues. 7/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 7/10 

Tues. 8/4 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 7/24 

Tues. 8/18 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/7 



 

Updated 4/27/20 
 

•  
Administration Report 
 

Tues. 9/1 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/21 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  

























































Council Briefing Form   

 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C-1) 

Touch Date: 04/21/20 
Brief Date:       05/05/20 
Action Date:  05/19/20 

Department:  Community Development 
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The City of Shelton entered into a lease agreement with Panza for approximately 3.233 acres located near the 
Shelton Springs Road and North 13th Street intersection for the development of a housing program and ancillary 
services for homeless veterans. The lease agreement stipulates Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) compliance with 
development standards and the necessary amendments to allow Single Room Occupancy (SRO) as defined. SMC 
Chapters 18 Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes and Flood Damage Prevention and 
Chapter 20 Zoning require amendments to meet the intent and allow for the construction of housing 
units outlined in the lease agreement.   
 
An additional amendment is proposed to Chapter 20.32.110(8) deleting redundant language in this 
section.  
 

       ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
       N/A  

   
       BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
       Adoption of the amendments has no budget impact. 
    
      PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

           Public notice has published in the newspaper of record on April1 16. 
 

      STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION: (if action is recommended, please include the proposed motion): 
      Conduct first reading of Ordinance # 1949-0220 amending Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 18 adding 
      definition of single room occupancy units and Chapter 20 adding single room occupancy in form and 
      configuration in neighborhood residential and mixed use planned unit developments.   

 

 
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Single Room Occupancy 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     Ordinance No. 1949-0220 
     Panza lease agreement 
      
      
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      



 
ORDINANCE NO.1949-0220 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 

RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING, ADDING A NEW SECTION 18.02.110 TO 
THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE AND AMENDING CHAPTER 20.32.110, 

CONCERNING SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY DEVELOPMENTS. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton enacts land use, development, building, mechanical, fire and other 
codes to protect lives and assure public safety; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, in May of 2019 the City Council executed a Lease Agreement with Panza, D/B/A 
Quixote Communities, for construction of a Tiny Homes Village to house low income veterans and 
other tenants; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Panza Lease authorizes construction of housing units in a Single Residential 
Occupancy (“SRO”) format not currently authorized under the Shelton Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to allow construction of residential units in a SRO format in 
limited circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed amendments at a properly noticed 
public meeting and held a properly noticed public hearing on May 5th, 2020, so as to receive public 

testimony; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided the Washington State 
Department of Commerce with a 60-day notice of its intent to adopt the amendment(s) to its Unified 
Development Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, an environmental review of the proposed amendments to the Development Code was 
conducted in accordance with the requirement of the State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”), and 
a non-project SEPA Determination of Non-significance was issued for the amendments on April 21, 
2020, which was transmitted to relevant State and local agencies, published in the Shelton/Mason 
County Journal and posted in public places; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the entire public record, public comments, 
written and oral; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered this Ordinance, together with all public 
comment, and has determined that the proposed amendments are in accord with the Comprehensive 
Plan, will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, and are in the best interest 
of the citizens of the City. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 
 
 
Section 1. A new section 18.02.110 is added to the Shelton Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
 
18.02.110 Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit. 
 
“Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit” (sleeping unit) is a structure that provides living units that have separate 
sleeping areas, each of which must be at least 120 square feet and have access to both sanitary facilities and a full 
common kitchen facility, subject to the following: 
 

A. Sanitary Facilities shall include: 
 

1. At least one flush toilet, lavatory basin, and bathtub or shower must be supplied for each sleeping 
unit.  Lavatory basins and showers must have adequate quantities of hot and cold running water. 

2. All sanitary facilities must be in proper operating condition and be adequate for personal 
cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.  The facilities must utilize an approvable public or 
private disposal system as required by Title 14 of the Shelton Municipal Code and public works 
standards. 

 
B. Space and security. 

1. Each sleeping unit must have 120 square feet of floor space and at least 4 square feet of closet 
space. 

2. Exterior doors and windows accessible from the outside must be lockable 
 

C. Access. 
1. Residents must be able to access their sleeping unit, sanitary, and kitchen facilities without passing 

through another sleeping unit. 
2. Kitchen and sanitary facilities may be located in a detached community building located on the 

same site as the sleeping units. 
D. Use and location. 

1. Single Room Occupancy units may only be located within Neighborhood Residential Zone and 
Mixed Use Zones. A Planned Unit Development permit shall be required for all single room 
occupancies. 

2. Sleeping units shall not be for transitory housing (the rental of any building or portion thereof used 
for the purpose of providing lodging for periods of less than 30 days. 

3. Sleeping units shall either be owner-occupied, or shall provide housing for a tenant, pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement. 

4. The following uses are not considered single room occupancy sleeping units: boarding houses, 
hotels and motels, extended stay hotels and motels, assisted living facilities, convalescent/nursing 
homes, and facilities which provide short-term or long-term care for tenants suffering from 
physical, mental or other disabilities.  

 
Section 2. Shelton Municipal Code Section 20.32.110 is amended to read as follows: 
 
 
20.32.110 Form and configuration in residential and mixed use. 
 
A.    Residential PUDs and residential components of mixed use PUDs may utilize the following techniques and 
incorporate the following uses: 

1.    Four-unit dwelling clusters with party walls; 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



2.    Town houses or patio homes with party walls; 

3.    Double-row houses with party side and rear walls; 

4.    Condominium ownership in multifamily buildings; 

5.    Varied lot size divisions; 

6.    Establishment of greenbelts, parks or other open area, or community buildings or recreation facilities; 

7.    Zero-lot line developments; 

8.    Z-lots, or other modified zero-lot line detached single-family developments; 9. Single Room Occupancy 
(SRO) Residential Development as defined in Shelton Municipal Code Section 18.02.110. 

109.    Multifamily project developments (i.e., apartment buildings/complexes).   

1110.    Neighborhood commercial uses as defined in SMC 20.44.290. 
 
 
Section 3. Effective date.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

INTRODUCED the 5th day of May 2020.  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County Washington at a regular open 
public meeting held the 19th day of May, 2020., the following Coucilmembers being present and 
voting in favor of this ordinance. 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

___________________    __________________ 
City Clerk       Mayor Dorcy  
 
        
         
        
 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

































Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C-2) 

Touch Date:  03/19/20 
Brief Date:     05/07/20 
Action Date:  05/19/20 

Department:  Administrative Services 
   
Presented By: Michelle Sutherland 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Non-represented Salary Schedule      
  Update – Superseding Ordinance  
  No. 1946-1019 

  
  ATTACHMENTS: 
  Ordinance No. 1951-0320 
  Exhibit A – Updated Non-represented 
  Salary Schedule         

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The non-represented Salary Schedule allows the City to effectively compete for qualified personnel and 
ensures that salaries are equitable and commensurate with the duties performed in each position.  The 
updated Ordinance regarding new hires states:  “All newly hired non-represented employees will be placed 
on their respective salary scale at Step A.  Appointment at levels above Step A is subject to approval by 
both the Administrative Services Director and City Manager.  Justification to hire above the entry rate of 
Step A must accompany hiring documentation.” 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  

 N/A 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Additional information is available from the City Clerk’s office.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

 Staff requests the Council concur to place this item on the May 19, 2020 action agenda. 
 





CITY OF SHELTON 
NON-REPRESENTED SALARY SCHEDULE 2020 (w/2.7% COLA) Rev. 04.20

SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min End of 6 Mths End of 1 Year End of 18 Mths End of 2 Years End of 3 Years End of 4 Years End of 5 Years End of 6 Years
Position FTE Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I
Account Analyst 3 19 50,037.00 52,539.00 55,165.00 57,922.00 59,660.00 61,449.00 63,292.00 65,191.00 67,147.00

4,169.75 4,378.25 4,597.08 4,826.83 4,971.67 5,120.75 5,274.33 5,432.58 5,595.58
24.06 25.26 26.52 27.85 28.68 29.54 30.43 31.34 32.28

Accounting Assistant 1 16 39,444.00 41,416.00 43,486.00 45,660.00 47,029.00 48,439.00 49,892.00 51,388.00 52,929.00
3,287.00 3,451.33 3,623.83 3,805.00 3,919.08 4,036.58 4,157.67 4,282.33 4,410.75

18.96 19.91 20.91 21.95 22.61 23.29 23.99 24.71 25.45
Accounting Manager 1 26 69,842.00 72,980.00 76,117.00 79,922.00 82,319.00 84,788.00 87,330.00 89,950.00 92,648.00

5,820.16 6,081.66 6,343.09 6,660.17 6,859.92 7,065.67 7,277.50 7,495.83 7,720.67
33.57 35.09 36.59 38.42 39.58 40.76 41.99 43.25 44.54

Administrative Manager 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00
Public Works 4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67

25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90
Administrative Services Director 1 30 85,581.00 89,860.00 94,353.00 99,070.00 102,042.00 105,104.00 108,257.00 111,504.00 114,849.00

7,131.75 7,488.33 7,862.75 8,255.83 8,503.50 8,758.67 9,021.42 9,292.00 9,570.75
41.14 43.20 45.36 47.63 49.06 50.53 52.05 53.61 55.22

Associate Civil Engineer (Entry) 1 22 57,925.00 60,822.00 63,862.00 67,055.00 69,067.00 71,139.00 73,273.00 75,471.00 77,735.00
minimal experience 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,321.83 5,587.92 5,755.58 5,928.25 6,106.08 6,289.25 6,477.92

27.85 29.24 30.70 32.24 33.21 34.20 35.23 36.28 37.37
Associate Civil Engineer (Journey) 1 24 63,861.00 67,054.00 70,407.00 73,927.00 76,144.00 78,428.00 80,781.00 83,205.00 85,702.00
2-3 years of experience 5,321.75 5,587.83 5,867.25 6,160.58 6,345.33 6,535.67 6,731.75 6,933.75 7,141.83

30.70 32.24 33.85 35.54 36.61 37.71 38.84 40.00 41.20
Building Official 1 25 67,055.00 70,409.00 73,929.00 77,625.00 79,954.00 82,352.00 84,823.00 87,367.00 89,988.00

5,587.92 5,867.42 6,160.75 6,468.75 6,662.83 6,862.67 7,068.58 7,280.58 7,499.00
32.24 33.85 35.54 37.32 38.44 39.59 40.78 42.00 43.26

Building Inspector 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00
4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67

  25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90
Captain (Police) 1 30 85,581.00 89,860.00 94,353.00 99,070.00 102,042.00 105,104.00 108,257.00 111,504.00 114,849.00

7,131.75 7,488.33 7,862.75 8,255.83 8,503.50 8,758.67 9,021.42 9,292.00 9,570.75
41.14 43.20 45.36 47.63 49.06 50.53 52.05 53.61 55.22

Chief of Police 1 32 94,354.00 99,072.00 104,025.00 109,226.00 112,503.00 115,878.00 119,354.00 122,934.00 126,622.00
7,862.83 8,256.00 8,668.75 9,102.17 9,375.25 9,656.50 9,946.17 10,244.50 10,551.83

45.36 47.63 50.01 52.51 54.09 55.71 57.38 59.10 60.88
SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min End of 6 Mths End of 1 Year End of 18 Mths End of 2 Years End of 3 Years End of 4 Years End of 5 Years End of 6 Years



CITY OF SHELTON 
NON-REPRESENTED SALARY SCHEDULE 2020 (w/2.7% COLA) Rev. 04.20

Position FTE Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I
City Clerk 1 22 57,925.00 60,822.00 63,862.00 67,055.00 69,067.00 71,139.00 73,273.00 75,471.00 77,735.00

4,827.08 5,068.50 5,321.83 5,587.92 5,755.58 5,928.25 6,106.08 6,289.25 6,477.92
27.85 29.24 30.70 32.24 33.21 34.20 35.23 36.28 37.37

City Engineer (PE) 1 30 85,581.00 89,860.00 94,353.00 99,070.00 102,042.00 105,104.00 108,257.00 111,504.00 114,849.00
7,131.75 7,488.33 7,862.75 8,255.83 8,503.50 8,758.67 9,021.42 9,292.00 9,570.75

41.14 43.20 45.36 47.63 49.06 50.53 52.05 53.61 55.22
City Manager 1 36 113,595.00 119,274.00 125,238.00 131,500.00 136,759.00 140,861.00 145,086.00 148,003.00 152,442.00

9,466.25 9,939.50 10,436.50 10,958.33 11,396.58 11,738.42 12,090.50 12,333.58 12,703.50
54.61 57.34 60.21 63.22 65.75 67.72 69.75 71.16 73.29

Code Enforcement Officer 1 18 47,655.00 50,038.00 52,540.00 55,167.00 56,821.00 58,526.00 60,281.00 62,090.00 64,763.00
3,971.25 4,169.83 4,378.33 4,597.25 4,735.08 4,877.17 5,023.42 5,174.17 5,396.92

22.91 24.06 25.26 26.52 27.32 28.14 28.98 29.85 31.14
Community Development Director 1 30 85,581.00 89,860.00 94,353.00 99,070.00 102,042.00 105,104.00 108,257.00 111,504.00 114,849.00

7,131.75 7,488.33 7,862.75 8,255.83 8,503.50 8,758.67 9,021.42 9,292.00 9,570.75
41.14 43.20 45.36 47.63 49.06 50.53 52.05 53.61 55.22

Communications Specialist 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00
4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67

25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90
Community Service Supervisor 1 19 50,037.00 52,539.00 55,165.00 57,922.00 59,660.00 61,449.00 63,292.00 65,191.00 67,147.00

4,169.75 4,378.25 4,597.08 4,826.83 4,971.67 5,120.75 5,274.33 5,432.58 5,595.58
24.06 25.26 26.52 27.85 28.68 29.54 30.43 31.34 32.28

Economic Development 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00
Specialist 4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67

25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90
Engineering Technician 1 19 50,037.00 52,539.00 55,165.00 57,922.00 59,660.00 61,449.00 63,292.00 65,191.00 67,147.00
2-5 years of experience 4,169.75 4,378.25 4,597.08 4,826.83 4,971.67 5,120.75 5,274.33 5,432.58 5,595.58
Journey/Senior 24.06 25.26 26.52 27.85 28.68 29.54 30.43 31.34 32.28
Finance Director (A) 1 32 94,354.00 99,072.00 104,025.00 109,226.00 112,503.00 115,878.00 119,354.00 122,934.00 126,622.00

7,862.83 8,256.00 8,668.75 9,102.17 9,375.25 9,656.50 9,946.17 10,244.50 10,551.83
45.36 47.63 50.01 52.51 54.09 55.71 57.38 59.10 60.88

Finance Director (B) 1 34 104,024.00 109,225.00 114,686.00 120,419.00 124,031.00 127,752.00 131,585.00 135,532.00 139,598.00
8,668.67 9,102.08 9,557.17 10,034.92 10,335.92 10,646.00 10,965.42 11,294.33 11,633.17

50.01 52.51 55.14 57.89 59.63 61.42 63.26 65.16 67.11
SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min End of 6 Mths End of 1 Year End of 18 Mths End of 2 Years End of 3 Years End of 4 Years End of 5 Years End of 6 Years
Position FTE Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I



CITY OF SHELTON 
NON-REPRESENTED SALARY SCHEDULE 2020 (w/2.7% COLA) Rev. 04.20

Finance Specialist 1 21 54,631.00 57,363.00 60,231.00 63,242.00 66,404.00 68,397.00 70,449.00 72,562.00 74,739.00
4,552.58 4,780.25 5,019.25 5,270.17 5,533.67 5,699.75 5,870.75 6,046.83 6,228.25

26.26 27.58 28.96 30.40 31.93 32.88 33.87 34.89 35.93
Homeless Outreach Coordinator 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00

4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67
25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90

Human Resources Analyst 1 21 54,631.00 57,363.00 60,231.00 63,242.00 66,404.00 68,397.00 70,449.00 72,562.00 74,739.00
4,552.58 4,780.25 5,019.25 5,270.17 5,533.67 5,699.75 5,870.75 6,046.83 6,228.25

26.26 27.58 28.96 30.40 31.93 32.88 33.87 34.89 35.93
Human Resources/Risk Manager 1 27 74,646.00 78,686.00 82,605.00 86,735.00 89,336.00 92,016.00 94,776.00 97,619.00 100,548.00

6,220.50 6,557.17 6,883.75 7,227.92 7,444.67 7,668.00 7,898.00 8,134.92 8,379.00
35.89 37.83 39.71 41.70 42.95 44.24 45.57 46.93 48.34

Information Technology Manager 1 24 63,861.00 67,054.00 70,407.00 73,927.00 76,144.00 78,428.00 80,781.00 83,205.00 85,702.00
5,321.75 5,587.83 5,867.25 6,160.58 6,345.33 6,535.67 6,731.75 6,933.75 7,141.83

30.70 32.24 33.85 35.54 36.61 37.71 38.84 40.00 41.20
Lieutenant (Police) 2 29 81,301.00 85,366.00 89,634.00 94,115.00 96,938.00 99,846.00 102,841.00 105,926.00 109,103.00

6,775.08 7,113.83 7,469.50 7,842.92 8,078.17 8,320.50 8,570.08 8,827.17 9,091.92
39.09 41.04 43.09 45.25 46.60 48.00 49.44 50.93 52.45

Municipal Court Administrator 1 24 63,861.00 67,054.00 70,407.00 73,927.00 76,144.00 78,428.00 80,781.00 83,205.00 85,702.00
5,321.75 5,587.83 5,867.25 6,160.58 6,345.33 6,535.67 6,731.75 6,933.75 7,141.83

30.70 32.24 33.85 35.54 36.61 37.71 38.84 40.00 41.20
Network Information Technology 1 22 57,925.00 60,822.00 63,862.00 67,055.00 69,067.00 71,139.00 73,273.00 75,471.00 77,735.00
Technician 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,321.83 5,587.92 5,755.58 5,928.25 6,106.08 6,289.25 6,477.92

27.85 29.24 30.70 32.24 33.21 34.20 35.23 36.28 37.37
Payroll & Benefits Specialist 1 21 54,631.00 57,363.00 60,231.00 63,242.00 66,404.00 68,397.00 70,449.00 72,562.00 74,739.00

4,552.58 4,780.25 5,019.25 5,270.17 5,533.67 5,699.75 5,870.75 6,046.83 6,228.25
26.26 27.58 28.96 30.40 31.93 32.88 33.87 34.89 35.93

Public Works Director 1 31 88,552.00 92,979.00 97,627.00 102,508.00 105,583.00 108,751.00 112,013.00 115,374.00 118,258.00
7,379.33 7,748.25 8,135.58 8,542.33 8,798.58 9,062.58 9,334.42 9,614.50 9,854.83

42.57 44.70 46.94 49.28 50.76 52.28 53.85 55.47 56.85
Public Works Superintendent 2 26 69,842.00 72,980.00 76,117.00 79,922.00 82,319.00 84,788.00 87,330.00 89,950.00 92,648.00

5,820.16 6,081.66 6,343.09 6,660.17 6,859.92 7,065.67 7,277.50 7,495.83 7,720.67
33.57 35.09 36.59 38.42 39.58 40.76 41.99 43.25 44.54

SALARY SCHEDULE Base Min End of 6 Mths End of 1 Year End of 18 Mths End of 2 Years End of 3 Years End of 4 Years End of 5 Years End of 6 Years
Position FTE Grade Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step G Step H Step I
Recreation Coordinator 1 20 52,540.00 55,167.00 57,925.00 60,822.00 62,645.00 64,525.00 66,461.00 68,454.00 70,508.00



CITY OF SHELTON 
NON-REPRESENTED SALARY SCHEDULE 2020 (w/2.7% COLA) Rev. 04.20

4,378.33 4,597.25 4,827.08 5,068.50 5,220.42 5,377.08 5,538.42 5,704.50 5,875.67
25.26 26.52 27.85 29.24 30.12 31.02 31.95 32.91 33.90

Senior Planner 1 25 67,055.00 70,409.00 73,929.00 77,625.00 79,954.00 82,352.00 84,823.00 87,367.00 89,988.00
5,587.92 5,867.42 6,160.75 6,468.75 6,662.83 6,862.67 7,068.58 7,280.58 7,499.00

32.24 33.85 35.54 37.32 38.44 39.59 40.78 42.00 43.26



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C-3) 

Touch Date: 04/22/20 
Brief Date:       05/05/20 
Action Date:  05/19/20 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
PW Rollers Purchase Order 
 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
 -2020 Capital Budget Request 
 -Sonsray Equipment Sourcewell     
  Roller Quote 
 -Purchase Order #PO2021   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The adopted 2020 budget included an expenditure of $70,000 out of the Equipment Maintenance & Repair 

(EM&R) fund for a new compaction roller. The existing roller is over 24 years old, beyond the useful life of 15 
years, and the increase in failing components has caused a large increase in shop maintenance hours to 
keep it in working condition. Currently, multiple city departments utilize this one, and only, roller for various 
applications, such as asphalt patch paving, roadway/roadside prep, alley and final topcoat finish. 

The current roller is a Bomag brand and has proven to be reliable and user friendly; for this reason and fleet 
consistency, staff is seeking to purchase rollers from the same manufacturer. After extensive research as to 
which model would best suit the City’s needs, staff explored purchase options utilizing a Sourcewell Contract. 

 RCW 39.34.030 allows for cooperative purchasing for the procurement of any goods or services. Similar to 
purchasing off of a State Contract, Sourcewell is a cooperative purchasing source that holds hundreds of 
competitively solicited cooperative contracts ready for use by government, education, and nonprofit 
organizations, saving city staff valuable time and money. Staff has reviewed the means by which Sourcewell 
obtained the contract with Bomag, ensuring that all purchasing laws and regulations were followed 
appropriately. To utilize the Sourcewell Contract, staff contacted the local Bomag dealer, Sonsray Machinery, 
and requested a Sourcewell quote for the desired equipment. 

Staff has the need for two roller compactors, each a different roller width, the smaller roller being utilized for 
tight spaces and small asphalt patching. Sourcewell purchases are not eligible for trade-ins but Sonsray 
Machinery offers consignment sales, which we will be utilizing for the surplus of the old roller. Staff reviewed 
other rollers of the same model/year and estimate the value of our current roller to be somewhere in the 
$3,000 range. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
$70,000 was approved in the 2020 EM&R Budget.  This request comes in at $12,115.80 under budget with a 
total of $57,884.20 for both rollers. 
  



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place this item on the May 19, 2020 action agenda. 



2015 Budget Preparation  Page 1 of 1 

Approved: _________ 
 

Funding Priority: 3 
  Title:   New Roller Compactor 
 
The existing roller is over 24 years old, beyond the useful life of 15 years, and is showing its age. 
Departments utilize this one (and only) roller for various applications such as asphalt patch paving, 
roadway/roadside prep, alley and final topcoat finish. Increased maintenance hours due to failing 
components justifies this request. It would be recommended to keep the old roller for various 
departmental use. When using the roller to compact an alley or gravel road, the rougher subgrade 
material can cause the roller to become out of balance, therefor causing issues when using the 
roller to compact a smoother surface such as an asphalt road. If a new roller compactor purchase 
were to be approved, the old roller would be used on the rougher surfaces, saving the new roller 
for the smoother, less damaging surfaces, therefore extending the life of the new roller. 
 
Expenditures 

Category Description 2019 Requested 
Funding 

Salaries and Wages   
Benefits   
Supplies   
Other Services/Charges   
Intergovernmental   
Capital Outlay   
Interfund (Prof Serv-Eng)   
Interfund (Equip Rental)   
Interfund (Indirect Costs)   
Total Expenditures  $70,000 

Revenue 
List all known and/or anticipated sources of revenue.  If this is a utility project, what amount and percent 
of the project will be financed through rates?  If this is an equipment purchase, is it replacement?  What 

 

2020 Budget Worksheet 
New Project / Program or Capital Purchase  

Department: EM&R 
Author: Mike Albaugh 



2015 Budget Preparation  Page 2 of 1 

will happen to the old asset? Trade-in (provide documentation of value)? Disposal? Re-use?  Please 
include the affect of that here. 

Funding Source Name of Funding 2020 Anticipated 
Revenue 

   
   
   
Total Revenue   

Comments/Additional Information









Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D-1) 

Touch Date: 04/22/20 
     
Action Date:  05/05/20 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Public Works Mower Purchase Order 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  -2020 Capital Budget Request 
  -Washington Tractor State Contract 
   Quote 
  -Purchase Order #PO2020   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
A rear stow roadside mower was authorized for purchase in the 2020 Equipment Maintenance & Repair 
(EM&R) Budget for $215,000. Utilizing the Washington State Procurement list, both the cab tractor and the 
boom mower can be purchased from Washington Tractor for a price significantly below the approved budget 
amount. Further, Washington Tractor has provided a trade-in allowance of $13,800 for the existing mower and 
attachment, reducing the overall price of this needed asset replacement. 
The current roadside mower is over 19 years old, beyond the useful life of 15 years, and numerous shop hours 
have been spent working on maintaining the function of this equipment. The present mower has a side-stow 
configuration, whereas, the requested rear-stow allows for safer roadway travel due to the shorter overall width.  
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Quoted purchase prices: 
 Cab Tractor:   $ 93,722.19 
 Boom Mower:   $ 81,219.30 
 Trade-In: - $ 13,800.00 
 Tax:    $ 14,180.45 
Total Purchase:  $175,321.94 
Amount approved in 2020 Budget:  $215,000 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends: “I move to approve the purchase of the John Deere tractor and rear stow mower 
attachment, and approve the trade-in of the existing tractor/mower, by authorizing the Mayor to sign purchase 
order number PO2020”.   



2015 Budget Preparation  Page 1 of 1 

Approved: _________ 
 

Funding Priority: 1 
  Title:   New Rear Stow Roadside Mower 
 
The current roadside mower is presently over 19 years old, well beyond the useful life of 15 years. 
Numerous hours have been spent working on maintaining the function of this piece of equipment. 
The present mower has a side stow configuration, whereas the requested rear stow allows for safe 
roadway travel due to the shorter overall width. The existing mower will also provide a trade-in 
value estimated at $15,000… potentially decreasing this $215,000 request. 
 
Expenditures 

Category Description 2019 Requested 
Funding 

Salaries and Wages   
Benefits   
Supplies   
Other Services/Charges   
Intergovernmental   
Capital Outlay   
Interfund (Prof Serv-Eng)   
Interfund (Equip Rental)   
Interfund (Indirect Costs)   
Total Expenditures  $215,000 

Revenue 
List all known and/or anticipated sources of revenue.  If this is a utility project, what amount and percent 
of the project will be financed through rates?  If this is an equipment purchase, is it replacement?  What 
will happen to the old asset? Trade-in (provide documentation of value)? Disposal? Re-use?  Please 
include the affect of that here. 

Funding Source Name of Funding 2020 Anticipated 
Revenue 

   

 

2020 Budget Worksheet 
New Project / Program or Capital Purchase  

Department: EM&R 
Author: Mike Albaugh 



2015 Budget Preparation  Page 2 of 1 

   
   
Total Revenue   

Comments/Additional Information













Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D-2) 

Touch Date:  03/03/2020 
Brief Date:     03/17/2020       
Action Date:  05/07/2020 

Department:  Administration 
   
Presented By:  Jeff Niten  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Updating City Policies 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Policy 100-05 
  Policy 100-12 
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
City staff, as a whole, have been working to update all City policies.  The two policies attached concern records 
management and disclosure of public records.  The Clerk’s office has written and submitted a grant to the 
Secretary of State’s Office in order to obtain funds to help the City manage its records according to State law 
and best practices.   
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A   
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Additional information is available from the City Clerk’s office.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends:  “I move to approve City Policy number 100-05 concerning records management & City 
Policy number 100-12 concerning disclosure of public records.”  



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Records Management Policy 
 

GROUP: 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
100-05 

FIRST READING: 
March 17, 2020 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
May 7, 2020 

SUPERCEDES: 
100-05 dated April 1, 2003 

PREPARED BY: 
Donna Nault 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

1.0 PURPOSE  
The City of Shelton’s Records Management Program was established to provide 
direction and guidance to City employees and elected officials in the management of 
records created or received in the conduct of City business, and to ensure the City 
manages its records in compliance with applicable state, federal laws and rules. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED 

 All City departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES 

 Office of the Secretary of State – Washington State Archives Division of Records 
Management – Common Records Retention Schedule (CORE): CORE is the guideline 
used to identify records series, a retention schedule, special maintenance instructions, 
and procedures for disposing of records.  
http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx  

 Revised Code of Washington – Chapter 40 Records and Chapter 42 Public Records Act 
(RCW’s are the compilation of all permanent laws currently in force) 
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/  

 Washington Administrative Code – Chapter 434-600 through 434-840 (WACs are 
administrative regulations, or rules, adopted by state agencies’ executive branch) 
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/  

 Shelton Municipal Code – 2.06 City Departments; 2.18 City Manager; 2.22 City Clerk 
https://sheltonwa.gov/government/municipal_code  

 City of Shelton Policies & Procedures – 100-01; 100-6; 100-7; 100-12; 100-17; 100-24; 
200-1610; 200-1650 and 200-1651  w:\commonallstaff\citypolicies  

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

http://www.sos.wa.gov/archives/recordsretentionschedules.aspx
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/
https://sheltonwa.gov/government/municipal_code


Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

2 
 

In order to manage the City’s records in an efficient manner, streamline paper flow, 
provide for document archiving, minimize storage constraints, and remain in compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, policies and procedures, which govern agency record 
keeping practices, the City’s Record Management Program will implement best practices 
to include: 

• Annual identification and disposal of obsolete records, 
• The transfer of historically valuable records to the Washington State Archives 

system (Olympia Branch, 
• Removal of non-essential records from office storage areas, 
• Protection and security backup of records essential to City authority and 

operations, 
• Disaster preparedness, 
• Records system integrity and accessibility; and, 
• Effective compliance with disclosure of public records requests 

5.0 DEFINITIONS 

 5.1 Staff Designations 

  5.1.1 City Clerk:  The City Clerk is the designated Public Records Officer.  The 
Public Records Officer is responsible for the City’s Records Management Program and 
provides advice, direction, support, and oversees the management of said records, 
policies and procedures.   

5.1.2 City Clerk’s Designee:  The City Clerk’s Designee is responsible for 
tracking records and information that pertains to the legislative and executive branches 
of the City, and provides liaison support to department Records Designees to ensure the 
City’s Records Management Program is being followed. 

5.1.3 Records Designee:  A Records Designee is assigned by their department 
director to manage and maintain its department’s records.  Examples of responsibilities 
include, but are not limited to, ensuring the physical safety and protection of records, 
day-to-day management of records (paper and electronic), archiving, following the City’s 
Records Management Policy, and working in coordination with the City Clerk and/or their 
designee. 

5.2 Records Series 

5.2.1 Active/Semi-Active Records:  Records/information regularly used to 
conduct government activities are reviewed annually to ensure only the active and semi-
active records are stored.  

  5.2.2 Inactive Records:  Records/information that are accessed on a limited 
basis.   
 

  5.2.3 Essential Records:   Records/information that are essential to the 
continuous operation of the City.  These records/information do not necessarily have a 
permanent retention or historic value, but are preserved ensuring that in the event of a 
disaster the information can be easily accessed and operations can continue.   

 
   5.2.4 Historical Records:  Historical records/information document the history of 

the government and community.  Historic records/information contain significant 



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

3 
 

information about persons, places, events, governmental events and are sometimes 
records and information that are valuable because of their age or rarity.  Records and 
information that are determined to require preservation and are no longer required to 
remain on-site are transferred to the Washington Secretary of State Archives Division.   

   5.2.5 Electronic Records/Information:  Electronic records are to be easily 
accessible and preserved for the required retention period on a City server in a format 
that preserves the integrity of the original record.  Retention schedules apply to email, 
social media, text, voice messages, websites and databases.  A printed hard copy of an 
electronic record is not a substitute for the electronic version. 

6.0 PROCEDURES   
6.1 Active/Semi-Active Records/Information:  It is the responsibility of each 

department Records Designee to maintain and manage all active and semi-active 
records/information specific to their department.  

6.2 Essential Records/Information Protection: In the Spring of each year, the 
City Clerk and/or their designee will work with department Record Designees to identify 
essential records/information and project the costs association with their preservation. 

6.3 Inactive Records/Information & Storage – In the Spring of each year, 
Department Records Designees will compile a list of records that have become inactive 
and, after an interdepartmental review, will designate a record Disposition Authority 
Number (“DAN”) using the Washington State General Records Retention Schedule.  The 
department Records Designee will determine the record/information termination date 
and assign a destruction date to the record/information, and record the information in the 
City’s records data system.  For records/information that are to be stored in the City’s 
central records storage area, the City Clerk and/or their Designee will assign a shelving 
location to the Records Center Label.  The department Records Designee will then move 
the files/records to the appropriate shelving location and input all the information relating 
to the inactive records/information into the City’s information database. 
 

6.4 Inactive Records/Information Activation – Records Designees must 
submit a completed Inactive Records Request form to the City Clerk’s Office.  If the 
review of the file is temporary, the file will be provided to the requesting staff with an 
expected date of return.  If staff is seeking reactivation, the City Clerk’s Designee will 
review the request, and ask the City Clerk for comments.  After a decision has been 
made, a notation will be indicated on the form and returned to the City Clerk’s Designee 
who will then notify staff of the decision. If the request has been approved, the City 
Clerk’s Designee will pull the record/information from its central storage location and 
remove it from the records database, unless it is determined by the City Clerk to leave 
the record in the database and assign a new inactive date.  If not approved, the City’s 
Clerk’s Designee will forward the City Clerk's comments to the requestor and the record 
will remain archived.  

6.5 Destruction of Inactive Records/Information Past Retention Period -- The 
department Records Designees will prepare a list of records that are scheduled for 
destruction along with the Records Destruction/Transfer Checklist and a Request for  

 
In-House Destruction to the City Clerk and/or their Designee for review and approval 
prior to destruction of any records.  The Department Records Designee will destroy the 
records after obtaining required signatures from the Clerk’s Office. 

 



Records Management Policy & Procedure 100-05 
 

4 
 

6.6 Transfer to State Archives of Historical Records – The City Clerk and/or 
their Designee will prepare a list of records/information that is scheduled for transfer to 
the Washington State Archives and forward the list along with the Records 
Destruction/Transfer Checklist to the appropriate department Records Designee for 
review and interdepartmental approval. The City Clerk will perform the final review of the 
request.  Requests will be returned with comments and/or authorization.  
Records/information to be transferred to the Washington State Archives, the City Clerk 
or their Designee will update the information in the City’s records database and then 
transfer the documents/information to the Washington State Archives 

 
6.7 Electronic Records – Records/information created and/or received in the 

transaction of public business are public records and subject to the laws, regulations and 
rules governing the retention, disclosure, destruction and archiving of public 
records/information.  Electronic records must be retained in electronic format and remain 
searchable, usable, retrievable and authentic for the length of the designated retention 
period.  Employees have 60 days from the date a communication is sent or received to 
determine if the email meets the criteria as retainable.  If so, the electronic record will be 
placed in a pre-assigned folder on the W:\ Drive for the required retention period.    

 
6.8 Information Technology Staff – Information Technology staff will assist the 

City Clerk and/or Designee as well as department Records Designees in developing, 
implementing, and maintaining an electronic records storage system that supports this 
policy and a disaster recovery backup system for City documents/information. 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  1 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Disclosure of Public Records 
 

GROUP: 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
100-12 

FIRST READING: 
March 17, 2020 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
May 7, 2020 

SUPERCEDES: 
100-12 (not dated) 

PREPARED BY: 
Donna Nault 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 
1.0 PURPOSE 

 
To develop guidelines for disclosure of the City’s public records consistent with the intent 
of the Washington State Public Records Act, RCW Chapter 42.56, which is to provide 
full access to public records unless specifically exempted by state or federal law. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED 

 All City departments 

3.0 REFERENCES 

 Public Records Act (“PRA”),RCW Chapter 42.56; PRA Model Rules, WAC Chapter 44-
14 

4.0 DEFINITIONS 

4.1 Records Officer:  The City Clerk has been appointed by the City Council and will 
serve as the point of contact for members of the public requesting disclosure of public 
records, and will oversee compliance with all disclosure requirements. 

4.2 Records Designee:  Each department director will appoint a Records Designee 
who will be responsible for coordinating the production of requested records for their 
department.  If redaction is required, the Records Designee will be responsible for 
redacting the records and producing an exemption log. 

5.0 APPLICATION 

All departments must comply with this Policy with the exception of the Shelton Municipal 
Court, which is not considered an “agency” subject to the Public Records Act.  Nast v. 
Michels, 107 Wn.2d 300 (1986); City of Federal Way v. Koenig, 167 Wn.2d 341 (2009). 

 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  2 
 

6.0 PROCEDURES 
 
 6.1  Legal Review:  The City Clerk should seek legal review of all non-routine 

requests.  Legal review shall be sought whenever the City Clerk determines that a public 
records request: 

• Is ambiguous and requires clarification 
• Requires notice to affected third parties named in the records 
• Is made in conjunction with ongoing, threatened or potential litigation 
• Requires the application of unusual, complex or non-routine exemptions 
• Requires a complex search involving a variety of sources 
• Involves a high-profile issue or is subject to public or media scrutiny 
• May require the production of records from personal accounts or 

electronic devices 
• In any other circumstance in which the input of legal counsel will assist 

the City in fully discharging its duties under the Public Records Act while 
avoiding costly litigation 

Because public records issues are time sensitive, all Records Designees who believe 
legal review may be needed, will notify the City Clerk immediately.  If the City Clerk 
agrees legal review is necessary, the City Clerk will promptly contact the City Attorney. 

6.2 Request For Public Records:  All department offices will accept requests for 
disclosure of public records. 

6.3 Request For Records Outside of Department:  All department offices will accept 
public records requests for records not associated with their department and 
immediately forward the request to the City Clerk.  If the requester wants immediate 
attention, staff will direct the requester to the City Clerk.  The City Clerk will 
communicate with the appropriate department’s Records Designee. 

6.4 Requests Made Verbally Or On A Non-City Form:  Any staff person who receives 
a telephone call requesting public records will fill out the City’s Public Request Form, or if 
the requester is present and does not wish to personally fill out a form requesting public 
records, the staff person helping the requester will fill out the form.  The staff person 
should clarify the specific records the requester is seeking to ensure the request is as 
clear as possible.  The form will be submitted to the City Clerk for processing. 

7.0 FILLING REQUESTS 

7.1 Filled At Time Requested Or Within Five Business Days:  If possible, without 
undue disruption to other duties, staff should make the records available for inspection 
and/or copying at the time of the request.  If more time is necessary, staff should attempt 
to make the records available for inspection and/or copying within five business days. 

7.2 Requests That Cannot Be Filled Within Five Business Days:  If the records 
cannot be produced within a five business day period, the City Clerk is responsible for 
sending a written response to the requester within five business days of the request.  
The five-day letter will acknowledge receipt of the request and clarification if needed, 
explaining why additional time is needed to respond and estimate the time needed to 
complete the request.  If the City plans to answer the request in installments, the five-
day letter will provide an installment schedule and an estimated date for completing the 
full request.  If the request cannot be filled or any installments provided by the estimated 
dates promised, the City Clerk will provide a written statement to the requestor before 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  3 
 

the date has passed explaining the reason for the delay and providing a new 
installment/completion date. 

7.3 Single and Multi-Department Request For Public Records:  When a request 
requires more than a single department to search for and produce records, the City 
Clerk will notify the Records Designees from all affected departments of the request and 
set a due date for a search to be completed and the records to be produced to the City 
Clerk.  If a Records Designee requires additional time to conduct a search and provide 
the records, that information will be shared with the City Clerk within two business days.  
The Records Designee has the responsibility of gathering responsive records and 
sending them to the City Clerk on or before the due date.  The Records Designee will 
provide only records that are responsive to the request, and will produce the records in 
an organized manner that they may be produced to the requester without additional work 
by the City Clerk.  The City Clerk will coordinate the release of information to the 
requester. 

8.0 DISCLOSURE OF RECORDS 

8.1 Records Disclosed At Time of Request:  The Records Designee, along with the 
City Clerk, will be responsible for completing the disclosure request/response. 

8.2 Public Disclosure Records That Cannot Immediately Be Disclosed:  After 
communicating with the Records Designee, the City Clerk will be responsible for 
providing the requester with a written response within five business days, including an 
estimated date for providing the records. 

8.3 Records To Be Redacted Or Withheld:  If redaction is required, the Records 
Designee will be responsible for redacting the records and completing an exemption log.  
The redacted records and the exemption log will be given to the City Clerk for disclosure.  
The Records Designee will keep a copy of all documents redacted for the time period 
specified in the State Records Retention Schedule, unless risk management concerns 
warrant a longer retention period.  Records should seldom be withheld in their entirety, 
as it is usually possible to redact exempt information and produce the remainder of the 
record.  The City Clerk should consult with the City Attorney before withholding records 
in their entirety.  Any records withheld must be described on an exemption log, including 
the number of pages, author/recipient, date, type of record, legal cite to the exemption, 
and a brief explanation of how the exemption applies. 

8.4 Records Production that have a Combination of Release, Withholding or 
Redaction:  (See 8.2 Public Disclosure Records That Cannot Immediately Be Disclosed 
and 8.3 Records To Be Redacted or Withheld) 

9.0 SEARCHING FOR PUBLIC RECORDS 

9.1 The City Is Required To Conduct Reasonably Diligent Searches For Requested 
Public Records:  When filling requests, Records Designees and the City Clerk will 
search every paper and electronic location where requested records may reasonably be 
found.  This may include a search of personal accounts and electronic devices, 
depending on the request.  The City’s information Technology staff will assist with 
complex searches for electronic records including, but not limited to, emails and text 
messages. 

9.2 Searches Shall Be Carefully Documented For Complex and Non-Routine 
Requests:  The City Clerk will work with Records Designees to ensure that the search 



Disclosure of Public Records 100-12  4 
 

techniques used including search terms and the locations searched are 
contemporaneously documented. 

9.3 Charges For Public Disclosure Records:  The City has determined that it would 
be unduly burdensome to calculate actual costs for production of public records.  
Accordingly, the City will charge for public records consistent with the Fee Schedule 
contained in the Public Records Disclosure Act.  The City Clerk will evaluate the need to 
charge for customized electronic access on a case-by-case basis. 

9.4 Large Requests:  For requests estimated to be in excess of 50 pages, the City 
Clerk may require a deposit in an amount not to exceed ten percent of the estimated 
cost of providing records.  If the City makes records available on an installment basis, 
the City may charge for each installment before it is provided.  If an installment is not 
claimed or reviewed, the City may close the request after providing notice to the 
requester. 

10.0 CREATING NEW RECORDS 

The Public Records Act does not require the City to create new records that do not 
already exist at the time of the request.  However, there may be times when it is more 
efficient for the City, and more helpful for the requester, to create a new record in lieu of 
providing the records requested.  For example, if a request seeks discrete information 
contained in a large volume of records, it may be more efficient and helpful for the City to 
produce a summary of the requested information.  The City Clerk shall confirm with the 
requester that producing a newly created record will satisfy the request. 

11.0 REVIEW OF DENIALS 

The Public Records Act requires agencies to have a process for prompt review of the 
denial of records requests.  It is seldom, if ever, appropriate to deny a request for public 
records.  The City Clerk shall consult the City Attorney if a denial is being contemplated.  
Requesters may ask the City Manager to review any denials.  The City Manager or 
designee shall respond within two business days. 

12.0 LIST OF INDIVIDUALS FOR COMMERCIAL PURPOSES 

The Public Records Act prohibits the City from disclosing lists of individuals if the 
requester is seeking such lists for commercial purposes.  If a list of individuals is being 
sought and the City Clerk suspects the requester has commercial motivations, the City 
Clerk shall consult the City Attorney about how to handle the request. 

13.0 TRAINING 

The City Clerk, Records Designees, Department Directors/Managers and City 
Councilmembers shall undergo regular training on the Public Records Act compliance. 


	1 Agenda_20200505
	2 2020 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers 20200505
	4 SRO Ordinance No 1949-0220 Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	5 SRO Ordinance No. 1949-0220 final
	6 Lease Agreement_PANZA_20190522
	7 Briefing for Ord. 1951-0320 Final
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	8 Ord 1951-0320
	9 2020 Salary Schedule Non Represented with 2.7 COLA Final Updated 04.20
	Sheet1

	10 Briefing_PW Rollers Purchase Order
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	11 Capital Request_EM&R-Roller
	12 Sonsray Sourcewell Quote
	13 Roller PO
	14 Briefing_PW Mower Purchase Order
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	15 Capital Request_EM&R-Mower
	16 Washington Tractor State Contract Quote
	17 Mower PO
	18 Briefing City Policies
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	19 100-05 Records Management Policy
	20 100-12 DISCLOSURE OF PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY



